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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S INTRODUCTION

This report provides an overview of the
activities of the Malta Resources Authority for
the period 1 January 2016 to the 31°%
December 2016 presented in accordance with
the requirements of the MRA Act Chap. 423
Articles 18(1) and 24.

Throughout 2016 the Authority continued to
invest its energy to build and strengthen its
roles, particularly as the competent authority
and national registry administrator under the
European Community Gas Emissions Trading
Scheme Regulations and as the competent
inventory agency with respect to the National
System for the Estimation of Anthropogenic
Greenhouse Gas Emissions by Sources and
Removals by Sinks, together with the regulatory
functions related to quarry operations, the
metering of boreholes and the drilling of sea-
wells and geological boreholes. Staff of the
Authority were also actively involved in the
preparations for Malta’s Presidency of the
Council of the European Union.

During 2016 personnel from the Authority
provided management consultancy services to
the Bermuda Regulatory Authority to set-up the

electricity regulatory management system.

Regulatory

Quarries

The Authority continued to issue quarry
operators with an operating license in
accordance with the Police Licenses Regulations
(SL128.10) Article 95. During 2016 it issued 59
authorisations. 4 Quarries were declared and
certified as non-operative and or exhausted. No
new licenses were issued in 2016.

The Authority also issued the clearance for the
use of explosives in Hardstone Quarries.
Boreholes

It also issued 6 authorisations for the drilling of
seawells, 10 replacement boreholes and 14
authorisations for geological Boreholes in
accordance the Borehole drilling and excavation
works within the saturated zone Regulations —

SL423.32

With the aim of providing a better service the
Authority “overhauled” the available data on
groundwater sources and quarries. All ground
water documents were scanned and entered
into a database to ensure easy retreival of
information. In the case of the quarries
database original MEPA permits boundaries
were included in the data base.

During 2016 the Authority continued to
invetigate and take enforcement action on

reported illegalities in one particular case the
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Police authorities were asked to assist the
Authority in its investigations. As a result of the
enforcement carried out the Authority issued
three Administrtive fines totally four thousand

five hundred euros.

The European Community Gas

Emissions Trading Scheme

Throughout 2016 the Authority continued to
administer the EU ETS as competent authority
and as the national registry administrator.

The EU ETS covers stationary industrial
installations and aircraft operators. In respect of
stationary installations, the coverage of the EU
ETS in Malta during 2016 included the two
power generation plants at Marsa and
Delimara, with preparations in hand to include
two additional electricity generation
installations situated in Delimara in early 2017.
In the case of aviation activities, a number of
major operators based in Malta fall within the
administrative responsibility of MRA for EU ETS
purposes. It is worth noting that although the
General Assembly of the International Civil
Aviation Organisation finally reached an
agreement on a Carbon Offsetting and
Reduction Scheme for International Aviation
(CORSIA), this agreement did not have an

immediate impact on the Authority’s work with

regards to implementation of the EU ETS.

The GHG National Inventory

Agency

From a national GHG Inventory perspective,
2016 can be considered a year of review as two
major reviews of Malta’s inventory submissions
took place during the course of this year. The
European Environment Agency performed a
comprehensive review of Malta’s inventory
submission to the European Union, in
accordance with requirements of the EU’s
Effort-sharing Decision, which review included a
two-day mission to Malta. The second review
was Malta’s first ever in-country review of its
inventory under the rules of the UNFCCC and
the Kyoto Protocol carried out by an
international team of six experts who visited
Malta and reviewed all aspects of Malta’s
national inventory system and inventory
submission.

The two reviews showed that the Authority’s
efforts to develop its capacity to prepare
national GHG inventory submissions are on the
right track. The reviews also recommended a
number of improvements, including the setting
up of a documented quality management

system.
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Management Consultancy

Services

During the first two months of 2016 the
Authority provided management consultancy
services to the Bermuda Regulatory Authority.
The Bermuda Regulatory Authority was
originally set-up to regulate the
communications sector however in late 2015,
the Bermudian Government issued a draft
Electricity Act giving the Bermuda Regulatory
Authority the added responsibility to regulate
the supply and provision of electricity.

Following an extensive review of the draft
electricity act and a visit to Bermuda where
representatives of the Authority held meetings
with key stakeholders. A final report containing
recommendations was transmitted to the

Bermuda Regulatory Authority Board of

Commissioners.

Budgetary Control

Following the establishment of the Regulator

for Energy and Water Services (REWS), the

ST

=

Authority’s income was severely curtailed due
to the transfer of the regulatory responsibility
to REWS. However the Regulator agreed that,
for 2016, it would provide the necessary funds
to cover the expenditure gap of the Authority.
Notwithstanding the Authority followed strict
budgetary control and it sought to identify
additional revenue sources, like the provision of
management consultancy services, to ensure
that its expenditure did not exceed the budget
estimates. In fact, at the end of 2016, the
Authority registered a surplus of fifty two
thousand euros.

In addition, an internal audit programme was
initiated and is being followed to monitor

compliance with set policies and procedures.

Appreciation

Finally, | would like to thank the Members of
the Authority and the employees for their
support and commitment during 2016.

My gratitude also goes to the Chairman, Mr
Mario Azzopardi for his advice and guidance

throughout the year.
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CORPORATE MATTERS

Litigation
During the course of 2016, one appeal was
decided in the Authority’s favour confirming the

decision of the Authority ordering the closure of

a domestic groundwater borehole.

No new court cases and or appeals were filed

against the Authority during 2016

Internal Control
Through due attention to budgeting and

expenditure, the Authority maintained a stable
financial base during the period under
consideration. The Authority continued to
focus on ensuring that all dues are collected in a

timely manner.

Human Resources
The Authority recruited two additional persons

during 2016 to its staff complement, one of
which left during the probation period. At the
end of December 2016, the total number of
MRA employees was 10.The total number of
sick leave availed of by MRA employees was 42
days.

During the year, the Authority provided training
to one ICT student under the MITA student
placement program and one University of Malta

summer worker.

ICT

During the last 4 months of 2015 and 2016, an
ICT system that was totally independent
structure had to be developed.

This activity included:

- Updating of www.mra.org.mt
website;

- Network design and installation at
new MRA offices including cabling,
installation of firewall, switches and
router;

- Relocation of video conferencing
facilities from the Regulator for
Energy and Water Services to MRA;

- Setting up of email and
collaboration facilities for staff;

- Installation of physical server and
virtual servers (domain controller,
file server and application server);

- Installation of MSSQL servers to
handle groundwater source
database and registry database,
plus a number of test databases;

- Procurement of laptops, office
software and security certificates
for climate change staff;

- Creation of domain for the ‘new’
MRA;

- Installation of PBX and SIP
telephony system including
telephony services of laptops for
use when staff is abroad;
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Provision of VPN service for off-site
operation;

Creation of new front ends and
separation of databases for the
MRA registry systems;

Scanning of all groundwater source
files for sources registered in 1997
and 2008;

- Participation in Inspire directive
implementation;

The Authority also offered IT Service assistance
to the Regulator for Energy and Water Services
in the development and running of the National

Grant Schemes Databases.
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REGULATION

Inspire Directive

During 2016 the Authority collaborated with
MITA to uploadgeo-referenced data related to
quarries. Since the MRA does not have the
necessary infrastructure to host spatial datasets
files on the web server and make them available
to the general public, the data is provided
through the Malta Spatial Data Infrastructure, a
portal that offers web services to the general
public, public service and public sector

organisations.

The uploading of Spatial data is one of the
requirements of the Inspire Directive, formally
known as European Directive 2007/2/EC. The
Directive establishes an Infrastructure for
Spatial Information in the European Union. The
intention of INSPIRE is to create a European
Union (EU) spatial data infrastructure (SDI) that
facilitates the sharing of environmental spatial
information across public sector organisations
(at a national and international level) and
improves public access to spatial information

across Europe.

At this point, only point data regaring quarries
duly holding a trading licence by the MRA was

uploaded. Additional information, including

data on groundwater sources, will be uploaded

once more information is available and verified.

Consultation Requests from the
Environment and Resources
Authority

The Malta Resources Authority continued to

give regular consultation services on various
permit applications received by the Planning
authority and the Environment and Resources
Authority (ERA). These permits include both
development permits  and operational
Environmental Permits. The latter include
consultations on the Integrated Pollution
Prevention and Control (IPPC) Permits.
Consultation mainly concerns issues of
groundwater protection and the focus was on
requests for developments in areas Outside
Development Zones and developments which
could give rise to environmental pollution
especially with regards to groundwater or

developments in disused quarries.
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The MRA gave feedback in so far as possible

within the limits of its remit under the MRA Act.

Groundwater Sources Database

During 2016, the Authority started a process of
overhauling the data heldfor groundwater

sources.

1. All hard copies of files that that were
handed over to MRA by WSC were
scanned and referenced. This
eliminated the need to search a file
manually whenever there was a query
on a borehole by a member of the

public.

2. The access database was re-written.
Facilities to map and lookup files were
added. The backend was transferred to
robust SQL server from Microsoft
access. After quality control checks a
large amount of data and information
located in separate excel sheets were

integrated into the database,.

3. The Authority scanned all the pre-1988
“water board” maps. Presently these
maps are being geo-referenced. The
exercise requires substantial manual
intervention. The objective of the
exercise is to avoid the need to handle

the maps (dating from 1958) manually

whenever a query on old ‘spieri’, in line
with the ‘Notification of groundwater
sources regulations’ is made by a

member of the public.

The Authority has registered all WSC
sources as originally handed over to the
Authority and accepted by the review
board as validly registered. The data
handed over is being validated and
verified against the current status of the

sources.

Around 300 sources registered (mainly

in 1997) did not have a location
identified in terms of eastings and
northings, or the location geocoded was
not correct (e.g. the northings and
eastings were transposed). The reason
behind such an occurance was that no
site plans were provided or those
provided were unclear. The process for
either de-registering (on the grounds
that the information provided was not

complete) or geocoding these sources
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(after confirming the site with the user
and other location information
submitted at the time of registration) is

ongoing.

400 registered sources either do not
have correct depth information or have
missing  depth information.  This
information is necessary particularly for
sources located above perched
aquifers, as this determines which
aquifer is being tapped by the
sources.The data is being requested as

an ongoing exercise.

The Authority has started the process of
geo-enabling the database with all the
sources and a process of linking the
sources to the aquifer. It was found that
this process requires substantial manual
intervention. A separate but similar
process will establish which sources are
located in houses on the perched
aquifer. These are two conditions
necessary for determining which

sources are to be metered.

The database did not contain
information on the use of the spieri,
either at the point of registration or
later. The ‘change of user form’ was

amended to capture this data every

time a new user is registered. The
original WSC and MRA excel data
capture sheets and will be capturing
this data, together with additional
information received by the Authority
during a data collection exercise

undertaken in 2015.

9. The Authority is also following up with
the WSC the process of the metering
exercise started in compliance with the
‘Metering of groundwater sources

regulations’ in 2010.

Inspections and Enforcement

During 2016 the Authority continued to take
enforcement action as was considered

necessary following cases of non-compliance.

These cases were brought to the attention of
the Authority by the public. In all cases where
an alleged illegal drilling activity was taking
place, officers from the Authority were present
on site within two hours.
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The Authority also received reports of
abstraction from illegal sources. These reports
were first checked against the MRA records of
notified sources followed up with an on-site
inspection. MRA officials requested the

assistance of the Police Force in one

investigation.

During the year, the Authority’s officers also
attended several Court sittings related mainly to
enforcement duties in connection with
groundwater abstraction, drilling and quarry
licensing. Officers also attended sittings of the
Administrative Review Tribunal. Officers were

called to testify in two civil cases.
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Renewals, Permits and Notifications

TABLE 1: RENEWALS

Renewals Quarries New Renewal | Transfers
Hardstone Nil 25 Nil
Softstone Nil 34 Nil
TABLE 2: ONE TIME REGISTRATIONS OR NOTIFICATIONS
Registrations / Notifications
Registration of users of groundwater sources 24
Notification of a Groundwater Source 1
TABLE 3: PERMITS
Permits Requested | Accepted | Refused | Pending
Application for the exportation of stone
products Nil Nil Nil Nil
Application for the closure, sealing and
Nil Nil Nil Nil
decommissioning of a groundwater source
Sea-wells 6 6 Nil Nil
Cleaning of boreholes and replacement
10 10 Nil Nil
boreholes
Geological investigations 14 14 Nil Nil
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INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION

Consultancy Service to the
Regulatory Authority of Bermuda

In December of 2015, the Government of
Bermuda tabled a draft Electricity Act in the
House of Assembly. The draft Act allocated the
responsibility for electricity regulation to the
RAB. The RAB was to take on this responsibility
together with the existing responsibility for the
Communications Sector.

Officers of the MRA reviewed the draft
Electricity Act 2016, the National Electricity
Sector Policy of Bermuda, and proposed options
for an organisational and administrative
structure for the RAB that was consistent with
the proposed Electricity Act and international
practice, and that allowed the RAB to apply the
principles and concepts behind the regulation of
an electrical utility in the specific Bermuda
context.

The final report set out a number of alternatives
and recommendations that the RAB could adopt
to fulfill its obligations under the Electricity Act
2016. It also proposed a number of key changes
to the governance and organisational structure
to ensure that the RAB can meet its institutional
and regulatory goals as laid down in the
Regulatory Act 2011 and the Electricity Act
2016. The report, intended as a guide, proposed

that the RAB formulates and implements a

short-term strategy to take on the additional
responsibility of electricity regulation together
with taking up its official advisory role in the
legislative process within its competence and to
the continuous development of Bermuda’s
energy policy. The Electricity Act 2016 can into
force in October 2016.

Other Consultancy Service bids
The MRA also submitted a bid to the Authority

for Electricity Regulation (AER) of Oman
following a call for the drafting of standards and
rules for the connection of rooftop solar PV
systems giving due consideration to the general
requirements of the Oman Electrical Standards.
The scope of works included the
recommendation and drafting of technical
standard and rules allowing the connection of
rooftop solar PV systems to the distribution LV
network; proposals for new procedures to
follow in order to properly asses and approve
rooftop solar connection applications and
ensure their compliance with the standards that
are being developed by Distribution companies;
and advise on the minimum requirements
(experience/ competency & training) for
rooftop solar PV systems designers and
installers. Unfortunately, the bid was not

accepted by the AER.
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CLIMATE CHANGE

2016 has been another year of intense activity
for the Climate Change Unit of the Malta
Resources Authority in practically all areas
under its responsibility. Of particular
importance are events that will have a strong
impact on the future work of the Unit in the
short, medium and longer-term.

Much of what the Malta Resources Authority
does in respect of climate change is influenced
by developments at international, European
Union (EU) and national level. While the
adoption of the Paris Agreement in late 2015
signalled the start of technical discussions at
international level to implement that
agreement, the fulfilment of reporting
obligations under the United Nations
Framework Convention on Climate Change
(UNFCCC) and the Kyoto Protocol continued.
This is particularly the case with respect to the
reporting obligations, where Malta was, in the
course of 2016, also subject to its first ever in-
country review of its national greenhouse gas

inventory.

At European level, the adoption by the
European Commission of two new proposals
continues the legislative implementation of the
2030 Climate and Energy Framework approved
by Heads of Government of the European Union
Member States at the European Council of

October 2014. Meanwhile, preparations for

Malta’s Presidency of the Council of the

European Union continued apace.

Fulfilling reporting obligations

In fulfilment of its role as national Inventory
Agency, MRA, through its Climate Change Unit,
prepared the 2016 submission of Malta’s
national inventory of anthropogenic
greenhouse gas emissions and removals, and
started work on the 2017 submission.

Two reviews of Malta’s inventory were the
highlight of 2016 reporting activities of the
Climate Change Unit. The first review was
performed in accordance with requirements of
the EU’s Effort-sharing Decision, in order to
determine Malta’s compliance status under that
decision in respect of 2013 and 2014 emission
limitation targets for emissions not covered by
the EU’s emissions trading system. This review,
which also included a two-day mission to Malta,

was carried out under the auspices of the

European Environment Agency. Inventory
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compilers of the Climate Change Unit were
actively involved in providing the necessary
feedback to the expert reviewers. The second
review was Malta’s first ever in-country review
of its inventory under the rules of the UNFCCC
and the Kyoto Protocol. A team of six experts
from countries across the globe coordinated by
two officials from the UNFCCC Secretariat spent
a week in Malta going through all aspects of
Malta’s national inventory system and inventory
submission. This review again required
inventory compilers from the Climate Change

Unit to participate in discussions with the

reviewing experts.

The two reviews show that Malta’s efforts to
develop its national system for reporting of
national inventories are headed in the right
direction and bearing fruit. The UNFCCC in-
country review in particular does however
highlight a number of areas where
improvements are required, both in terms of
process and content. To this effect, the findings
from this review form the basis for significant
improvements being undertaken by the MRA
for future inventory submissions, including

updating of methodological approaches and the

formulation and documentation of a
comprehensive quality management system for

the Climate Change Unit.

Continuing policy-making at
European Union level

The implementation of decisions taken by
Heads of Government at the October 2014
European Council on a 2030 Climate and Energy
Framework was further boosted by the
adoption, by the European Commission, of two
new legislative proposals in the middle of 2016.
These were a proposal for a regulation on
binding annual greenhouse gas emission
reductions by Member States from 2021 to
2030 (so called Effort-sharing Regulation) and a
proposal for a regulation on the inclusion of
greenhouse gas emissions and removals from
land use, land use change and forestry into the
2030 Climate and Energy Framework (so called
LULUCF Regulation). Together with the proposal
adopted in 2015 for a directive amending
Directive 2003/87/EC (so-called EU Emissions
Trading Scheme, EU-ETS, Directive) to enhance
cost effective emissions reductions and low-
carbon investments, the proposals adopted in
2016 continue to ensure that EU climate policy
covers as many greenhouse gas emitting
sources as possible.

Negotiations between Member States on the
new proposals at the level of Working Party for

the Environment started in earnest in the
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course of the second half of 2016, under the
stewardship of the Slovak Presidency, in parallel
with the continuing discussions on the proposal
to amend the EU ETS Directive. The Climate
Change Unit provided technical support to the
Maltese Government in preparing Malta’s
position on these dossiers. The Unit’s work on
these dossiers during 2016 will also prepare the
groundwork for the role that officers from the
Unit will be undertaking in 2017 as part of

Malta’s Presidency of the Council of the EU.

Preparation for Malta’s
Presidency of the Council of the
European Union

2017 is the year of Malta’s Presidency of the
Council of the European Union. The first half of
2017 provides Malta with the opportunity to
lead discussions on important climate policy at

European Union level, not least through its role

MALTAEU2017

as broker of negotiations among the EU
Member States at Council, and as lead
negotiator on behalf of the Council with the

other EU institutions, namely the European

Parliament and the Council, on the three
legislative dossiers already mentioned.

In this respect, officers from the Climate Change
Unit will serve as deputy chairs of sessions of
the Working Party for the Environment working
on the proposal to amend the EU ETS Directive,
the proposal for an Effort-sharing Regulation
and the proposal for a LULUCF Regulation.
Other staff from the Unit will be providing
technical backup support to the Presidency
teams working on these dossiers.

In order to prepare for the mentioned
Presidency roles, officers of the Climate Change
Unit  participated in training provided
specifically for Malta’s Presidency term. A
number of training events were attended,
providing both theoretical and practical sharing
of experience on all aspects of a Presidency of
the Council of the EU. Furthermore, Climate
Change Unit staff attended several Working
Party sessions to follow the ongoing
deliberations on the respective proposals and to
gain first-hand insight into how these meetings
function. Such participation took place in
coordination with the officials from Malta’s
Permanent Representation to the European
Union who will be leading Malta’s work as chair
of the Working Party for the Environment

sessions.
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Implementing the EU Emissions
Trading Scheme

2016 was another year of routine
implementation of the EU ETS by the Malta
Resources Authority in fulfilment of its roles as
Malta’s competent authority for the scheme
and as national administrator of the Union
registry. This applies both for stationary
installations and aircraft operators.

While coverage of the scheme in respect of
stationary installations remained in terms of
two installations (Marsa Power Station and
Delimara Power Station) for 2016, preparations
are in hand to provide for the new set up of
three independent generating installations to
be located at Delimara, including the issuance
of the necessary updated or new permits,
approval of monitoring plans and fulfilment of
compliance obligations by the operators of the
respective installations.

The aviation sector saw an important
agreement being reached at the 2016 General
Assembly of the International Civil Aviation

Organisation on a Carbon Offsetting and

Reduction Scheme for International Aviation
(CORSIA) as a global market-based measure to
complement a broader basket of measures to
achieve the global aspirational goal of carbon-
neutral growth of international aviation from
2020 onwards. This agreement did not have an
immediate impact on the MRA’s work in
relation to implementation of the EU ETS in
respect of aviation for 2016; a legislative
response is however anticipated to take place at
EU level during the course of 2017. The
Commission should be adopting a proposal on
whether to continue the implementation of the
EU ETS Directive in respect of aviation for the
period up to 2020, as an interim measure
before the implementation of CORSIA by EU
Member States once the pilot phase
commences in 2021, in the first weeks of 2017.
The Commission proposal is expected to be
another dossier where the Climate Change Unit
will be providing support during 2017, not least
in providing support during negotiations on the

dossier, including as part of Malta’s Presidency

term.
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FINANCIAL ESTIMATES 2017

Income
Net Direct Expenditure

Staff Costs

Other Administrative
Expenses

Depreciation
Finance Income

Surplus before tax

2016
Actual

€

544,752

15,256

390,178

80,671

6,375

0

52,272

2017
Estimate

€

616,340

31,800

480,820

97,865

5,426

0

429
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MALTA RESOURCES AUTHORITY
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2016

Authority board report

The members of the Authority board present their report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Principal activities

The Malta Resources Authority (MRA) is a public corporate body with regulatory responsibilities relating to
water, energy and mineral resources in the Maltese Islands. It was set up by the Maltess Parliament
through the Malta Resources Authority Act, Chapter 423, The MRA has a wide range of responsibilities
essentially involving regulation of water and energy utilities, quarry operations, the protection of
groundwater, the regulation of retallers, operations and tradesmen in the ragulated sectors.

As from 1 August 2015, all activities, other than regulated mingral resources, ware taken over by the
“newly formed Regulator for Energy and Water Services (REWS]) by virlue of Act No. XXV of 2015,

Review of the operations

Curing the year under review the Authority received revenues from licenses and contributions of €301,624
(2015: €1,528,388) and €243,129 (2015: €181,000) as a subvention from the Regulator for Energy and
Water Services to cover Its operational costs. These revenues are generated in support of the Authority's
regulatory responsibilities. The Authority registered a surplus for the year of €52,681 (2015: €310,977)
after a tax credit of €409 (2015: expense of €138,861) and adminisirative costs of €477,225
(2015: €1,108,181). ‘

On 1 August 2018, by virue of Act No. XXV of 2015, Article 42, all assets and fiabilities of the Authority as
at 31 July 2015 were transferred to the Regulator for Energy and Water Services (REWS). No contribution
was paid o the authority for such a transfer, and so the Board deems this iransfer as a distribution of nst
assets ameunting to €1,941,908 to the newly formed Regulator.

Results and surplus funds

The statement of comprehensive income is set out on page 8. The surplus for the year amounted to
€52,681 (2015: €310,977). During 2015, by virtue of Act No. XXV of 2015, Article 42, the Authority's net
gesets as at 31 July 2015, amounting to €1,941,9086, were distributed to the newly formed Regulator for
Energy and Water Services. Shortfalls will be financed in future periods by the new Regulator.




MALTA RESOURCES AUTHORITY
Annual Report and Financlal Statements - 31 December 2016

Authority board report - continued
Board members
The board members of the Authority who held office during the year were:

Mr. Mario J. Azzopardi {Chairman}
Professor Manfred Waissenhacher
Dr. Slmoh Schambti

Ing. Paul Fenech

Mr. Frederick Cutajar

Statement of board members’ responsibllities
In preparing the financial staternents the board mempers are respensible for,

° ensuring that the financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU and the Malta Resources Authority Act;

» selecting and applying appropriate accounting policias;
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circlimstances;

. enguring that the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis unless It is
inappropriate to presume that the Authority will continue in operation as a going concern.

The board rmembers are also responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internai conirol as
the board members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatemant, whether due to fraud or error, and that comply with the Malta Resources
Authority Act. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Authority and hence for taking
reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities, .
The financial statements of the Autherity for the year ended 31 Decamber 2016 are included In the Annual
Repott 2016, which is pubiished in hard-copy printed form and may be made available on the Authority’s
website, The board members are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Annual Report on
the website in view of their responsibility for the centrols over, and the security of, the website. Access to
information published on the Authority's website Is avallable In other countries and jurisdictions, where
legislation goveming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
requirements or practice in Malta,




MALTA RESOURCES AUTHORITY
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2016

Authority board report - continued

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution for their re-
appointment will be proposed.

On behalf of the board

e,

Mario J. Azzopardi lng:W

Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Registered office

Malta Resources Authority
Millennia, 2nd Floor

Aldo Moro Road

Marsa MRS 2085

Malta

21 February 2017




Independent auditor’s report
To the Stakeholders of the Malta Resources Authority

Report on the audzr ()f the finaneial smtemeni's

Our e}ﬁzmmz
In ouropiniom

»  The Malta Resources Authority’s finaneial statements give o true and faivview of the authority’s
financial position as at 31 Decomber 2016, and of the authority’s financial periormame and cash
flaws for the year then ended i avcordance with Tntemationsl Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs") ag adopred by the EU; and

& The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the Malta
Resources-Authority Act:

What we have gudited

The Malta Resoutces Authority’s inanclal statements, set out on pages 710:26, comprise:
e the statement of financial position as at 33 December 2018;

» the statement of comprehensive income for the year-then snded;

o  the statement of changes in equity for the year thepenided;

@ the statement of cash flows for-the year then ended; and
# the notes to the financial statements, which inciude & summary of significant accounting policies.

Basts for opinion

We conducted our audit in acéordance with Internationdl Standards on Audifing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further desaribed in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Staterments section of our report.

We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide o basis
for.our opiniof.

Independense

We ate independent of the authority fn accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ ‘Code of Bthics for Professional Aceornitants (IESBA Code) together with the sthical
requirements of the Adctuntancy Profession (Code of Ethics for Warsant Holders) Divactive issued in
terms of the Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281) that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statemeiits in Malta. We have fulfilled enr other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the TESBA
Code,



Other informuoiion

The board members are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
annual report and board's report, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial staterients does not cover the other information, inchyding the anriual
repoit and board’s report.

In eonnection with our audit of the finaneial statements, our responsibility i to tead the other
information identified above and; in doing so, consider whethet the otker information is materially
ineomsistent with the: finanelal stateinents ot gut knowledgé obtatned in the andit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

With. reapect te the annual report and board’s report, we algo considered whether the annual Teport
and board’s reportinclude the disclosures raquired by the Malta Resonress Authority At

Based ot the work we bave performed, in our opinions

s Theinformation given in the anmual report and board’s reportforthe finaneial year for whick the
financial statements are prepared are consistent with the financial statements; and

¢ the annual report and board’s report have been prepared in accordance with the Mala Resources
HAuthotity Act,

In addition, I light of the knowledgs and. understanding of the authority and fis environient
ébtained in the course of the audit, we are requived to report if we have identified material
misstatements in the annual report and baaed’s report and sther information that we obtained prior
to the date of this anditor’s report, We have nothing to report in this regasd,

Respousibifities of the board members for the finarcial statenients

The board merobers are responsible for the preparation of financial statemenits that give a trie aud
fair view in aceordance with TFRSs as adopted by the EU and the requivermerits of the Malta Resources
Authotity Act, and:for such internal control as the bvard mesibers deteririine 18 ndcessary to enable
the preparation of financidl statements that ave free from material misstatement, whether due to
fratd or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the board members are respansible for assessing the authority's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, #s applicable, matters rélated o going coneern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the hoatrd members ithér intend to liquidate the
authority or fo cease operationis, v has no'realistic alternative but.to do so.



Auditor’s responsibilities for the qudit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assuiance about whether-the finaneial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement; whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasondble assurance is a high level of assurance, but s not a guarantee
that an dudit conducted in accordance with I8As will ulways deteet a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstaterments can dride from frand or efror and are eorsidered material I, fudividually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably bé expected to influeide the ecodomie decisions of users faken
on the hasis of these financial statements.

&s part of an audit in accordance with. I9As, we exereise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticisin throughout the audit; We also;

o Tdentify and assess the risks of material inisstatement of the finaneial statements, whther dueto
fraud.or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those rxs}ts and -obtain audit
evidenioe that s sufficlent and appropriate to- ;;zmvuie a basis for our opinfon. The risk of not
detectmg a material misstatoment resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as frand may involve collusion; forgery, inténtional omissions; wisrepresentations; or the overvide
ofinterndl control,

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the dndit fn order to design audit
proca&ures that are appropriate o the circumstances, but not for: the purpose of expresaing an
opinion on the sffectiveness of the authority’s internal eontral.

o Byaliate the Appropriateness of qecounting policies used and the feasonableness of ackountitig
pstimates and related disclosires made ‘by‘the'bcard fremnliets,

¢ Coucinde on the appropriatensss of the board members’ use of the golng concern bagis of

gieounting ‘and, bagsd on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material wncertainty: exists

relited to eventy or conditions that may cast signiffcant doubt on the autherity’s ability to

econtihie 85 4 golng tonceriy, T we conelude that a materinl uncertmnty extets, we are required to

deaw aftetfion ih ous anditor's report 1o the relat;ed d’}sciasufes i the ﬁnﬁnudl statements or, if

such disclosures ave inadequate, to modify ol opinion. Cur condlusions urg based o thie.andit

evidence ohtatned up to the date of our atiditor’s report. However, fiitire eveénty or conditions
meay cause the authority to epase to continue as a going eoncern.

@ Evalﬁate fhe overa’i‘l pmsenta’cmn, stmcmrei and ccmtent o’f ‘t‘ﬂe ﬁncmmai statmnmt&} mciud:mg ?;11@

avents in a anner that achm’yes Fair prasenmtion

We ¢ommumnicate with those charged with governanee regarding, among other matters, the plann'efi
seope and timing of the andit and significant audlt findings, inclnding any significant Geficiencies In
interial coriteol that we identify during our audit.

Pm@ewaterhﬁusaﬁmpers
t Mlli Street

* 21 'Febl- AUV 2017



B _ MALTA RESOURCES AUTHORITY
Annual Report and Finanicial Statenents - 31 December 2018

Statement of financial position

Ag a3t December

2018 2615
_ Motes £ £
ASSETS
Non-surrent assets
Property, plant and-equipment 4 14,248 2751

Total non-current aesefs 14,248 2,781

Current hesols

Trade end other receivables 5 4,480 52 ARE
Gurrent tax asset 99,285 “
Gashand cash squivalons [3 82,244 896

Total current assets 196,130 53,204

Total asesis 210,878 58,075

BQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Ceopttal and reservas N

Total equity 29,085  (272.420)

Gurrent liabilities ) _
Tratle and other payables 8 157,006 204,487
Current tax llabiifies 28,407 34 Gagy

Tetal liabifties 181313 3endos

Total pguity and Habliltles 210,378 56,075

The notes on pages 11 to 26.are an integral patt of these financial siatements.

The ‘financial statements on pages 7 to 26 were ‘authorised for issua by Ihe board rmembers on.
21 February 2017 and wefe signed.on its behalf by

Mrj’o J. Azzopardi ing. Anath
Chairman Chief &




MALTA RESOURCES AUTHORITY
Annual Report and Financlal Statements - 31 December 2016

Statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015

Notes € €

Revenue 10 301,624 1,526,388
Subvention from new Regulator 10 243,129 181,000
Excess expenditure over funds received 11 - (11,431)
Direct expenditure 12 (15,256) (144,722)
Administrative expenses i2 (477,225) (1,1086,181)
Operating surplus 52,272 445,054
Finance income 15 - 4,784
Surplus before tax 52,272 449,838
Tax cradit/(expense) 18 409 (138,861)
Surplus for the year - total comprehensive income 52,681 310,977

The notes on pages 11 to 26 are an integral part of these financial statements.




MALTA RESOURCES AUTHORITY
Annual Report and Financlal Statemenis - 31 December 2016

Statement of changes in equity

Accumulated
surplusfloss
Note €
Balance at 1 January 2015 1,358,509
Comprehensive income
Surplus for the year , 310,977
Distribution of reserves upon enactment of new regulator
and transfer of related activities 7 (1,941,906)
Balance at 31 December 2015 (272,420)
Comprehensive income
Surplus for the year 52,681
Adjustment 1o the distribution of resetves upon
enactment of new regulator and transfer of related
activities 7 248,804
Balance at 31 DRecember 2016 29,065

The notes on pages 11 to 26 are an integral part of these financial statements.




MALTA RESOURCES AUTHORITY
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2016

Statement of cash flows

Notes

Cash flows generated from operating activitles

Cash generated from.opsrations 17
Interest raceived

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows used in investing activitles
Purchase of property, plant and equipment A

Net cash used in Investing activities

Met movement in cash and cash equivalents

Cash transfer to Regulater for Energy and Water Services
Excess funds reimbursed back to Gavernment of Malta 11

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalenis at end of year 8

The notes on pages 11 to 26 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
€ ¢
109,220 936,327
- 4,784

- (348,199)
109,220 592,912
(17,872) (8,023)
(17,872) (8,023)
91,348 584,889
- (3,988,142)

- (1,500,000

896 4,904,149
92,244 896

10



MALTA RESOQURCES AUTHORITY
Annual Report and Financial Stalements - 31 December 2016

Notes to the financial statements

1.

Act. They have been prepared under the historical cost.

Summary of slgnificant accounting policies

The principal accounting policles applied In the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been censistantly applied to all the ysars presented, unless otherwise
stated.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFR8s) as adopted by the EU and the requirements of the Maita Resources Authority

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs as adopted by the EU requires the
use of certain accounting estimates. It also requires the board members to exercise judgement in
the process of applying the Autharity's accounting policles (see Note 8 - Critical accounting
estimates and judgements).

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2018

In 2016, the Authority adopted new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are mandatory for the Authority's acceunting periad béginning on 1 January 2016.
The adoption of these revisions to the requirements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU did not result in
substantial changes to the Authority’s accounting policies.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effsctive in 2016

Certain new standards, amendments and interpratations to existing standards have been published
by the cate of authorisation for issue of these financial statements but are mandatory for the
authority's accounting perlods beginning after 1 January 2016. The authority has not early adopted
these revisions to the requirements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the Board Is of the cpihion
that, with the exception of IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, there are no requirements that will have
a possible significant impact on the authority’s financial statements in the period of inltial
application.

1.2 Fareign currency transiatlon
{a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial staterments are measured using the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the eniity operates (‘the functional currency’}, The financial
statements are presented in euro, which is the Authority’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and bajances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currengy using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlament of such transactionis and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabillties denominated in foreign currencies are recognised In profit or loss.

All forelgn exchange gains or losses are presanted in the income statement.

11



MALTA RESOURCES AUTHORITY
Annuai Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2018

Summary of slgnificant accounting policies - continued
1.3 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipmant is Initially recorded at historical cost, Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributabls to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recegnised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying armount of the
replaced part s derscognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurrad.

lems of property plant and equipment comprise leasehold improvements, computsr equipment,
computer software, motor vehicles, and furniture, fixtures and other equipment and are initially
recognised at acquisition cost. Subsequently they are carried at acquisition cost less subsequent
depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allccate their coat or ravalued amount to
thair residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

%
Leasenold improvements 10
Computer equipment a0
Computer software 30
Motor vehicles 20
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 10 - 80
Assets held under finance lease over the term of the lease

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriats, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount If the asset's carrying amount Is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in profit or loss.

1.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances Indicate that the carrying ameunt may not be recoverable. An impalrmant loss Is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amolint exceeds its recoverable amount,
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs ta sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levals for which there
are separately Identiflable cash flows (cash-generating units),

12



MALTA RESCURCES AUTHORITY
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2018

Summary of signlficant accounting policies - contirued
1.5 FInanclal assets
1.5.1 Clagsification

The Authority classifies its financial assets into loans and receivables, The classification depends
on the purpese for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financlal assets at inltial recognition.

lLoans and receivables are non-derivative financial assats with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Authority provides money, goods or
services directly to a debtor with no intenfion of trading the asset. They are inciuded in current
assels, except for maturities greater than twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
These are classified as non-current assets. The Authority’s loans and recelvables comprise trade
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position (Note
1.6 and 1.7).

1.5.2 Recognition and measurement

The Authority recognises a financlal asset in its staterment of financial position when it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on ssttlement dats, which is the date on which an asset is dalivered to or by
the Authority. Any change in fair value for the asset to be received is racognised between the trade
date and settlement date in respact of assets which are carried at fair value in accordance with the
measursement rules applicable to the respectiva financial assets.

Financial assets are initially recognisad at fair value plus transaction costs. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Amortised cost fs
the initial measurement amount adjusted for the amottisation of any difference between the initial
and maturity amounts using the effective Interest method.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Authority has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership or has not retained control of the asset.

1.5.3 Impairment

The Authority assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is cbjective evidencs that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is Impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impahment losses are incurred only if there is oblectiva evidence of
impairment as a resuit of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a ‘loss event)) and that loss avent (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be rellably estimated. The Authority first
assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists. The criterla that the Authority uses to
determine that there is obJective evidence of an impairment loss includs:

. slghificant financial clifficulty of the issuer or obligor;
» abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency it interest or principal payments;
» it becomes probahle that the borrowsr wil enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation,

13



MALTA RESOURCES AUTHORITY
Annual Report and Financial Statements -~ 31 December 2016

Summary of significant accounting policies - confinuad
1.5 Financial assets - continued
1.5.3 Impairment - continued

For financlal assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the flnancial asset's
original effectlve interest rate, The asset's carrying amount is reduced and the amount of the loss
is recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subseguent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can ba related objectively to an event occurring after the Impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impalrment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

1.6 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables generally comprise amounts due from utllity organisations and other operators,
If collection Is expected in one year or less (or in the normal cperating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. [f not, they are presentad as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initiaily at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provigion for impairment. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss Is recognised in the income statement. When a tecelvable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for trade and other receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amcunts
previously written off are credited against profit or loss.

1.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at face value, 1n the
statement of cash fiows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits hald at call
together with short-tarm, highly lieuid investments that are readily convertible into known armounts
of cash, and which are subject to an ingignificant risk of changes in value.

1.8 Reserves
The reserve fund includes all current and prior period retained surpluses and deficits,
1.9 Financial liabilities

The authorlty recognises a financial liability In its staiement of financial position when it bacomes a
party to the contractual provisions of tha instrument. The authority's financial Habllities are
classified as financial iabilities which are not. at fair value through profit or l0ss (classified as 'Cther
liabilities”) under IAS 38, Financial liabilities not at falr value through profit or less are recognised
Initially at fair value, being the fair value of consideration received, net of transaction costs that are
directly atiributable to the acquisifion or the issue of the financial liability. These liabiliies are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. The authority derecognises a financial liability from its
staterment of financial position when the obligation specified in the contract or arrangement is
discharged, s canceiled or expires,

14



MALTA RESOURCES AUTHORITY
Annhual Report and Financial Statements - 31 Decamber 2016

Summeary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.10 Trade and other payables

Trade payables cemprise obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of aperations from suppliers and service providers. Accounts payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or In the normai operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Other payables include amounts related to committed and approved grants allocated to the
Authority by the EU and the Government of Malta with respect to the renewabls ehergy rebate
schemes administrated by the Authority.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

1.711 Current and deferred tax

The tax expensse for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehansive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprahensive incoms ot directly
in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liabllity method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabllities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred
tax fs determined using tax rates (and laws} that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expecied to apply when the related defetred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liabilty is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised anly to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offzat
curtent tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred iax assets and Habilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

1.12 Provisions

Provisions for lega! claims are recognised when the Authority has a present legal or constructlve
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outfiow of rasources will e required to
settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions ars not recognhised for
future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures axpected to be required o settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current markst assessments of the time value of
maoney and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recagnised as interest expense.

15



MALTA RESQURCES AUTHORITY
Annual Report and Flnancial Statements - 31 December 2016

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.13 Revenue recognition

Revenue Is racognised when the amount of revenua can be measured reliably, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, the costs incurred or to
be incurred can be measured reliably, and when the criteria for the Authority's activities has been
met.

(Y lncome from licences and contributions from utility organisations is recognised on an
accrual basls,

(1 Interest incorne from investments Is reported in an accrual basls using the effective interest
method.

income derlved from grants allocated to the Authority by the EU and the Government of Malta with
respect to the renewsble energy rebate schemes is recoghised over the periods necessary to
match with related refunds paid to eligible scheme applicants.

1.14 Operating expenses

Operating expenses are recoghised in the income statement upen utllisatlon of the service
renderad.

1.15 Finance leases

The economic ownership of a leased assst Is transferred to the lessee if the lessse bears
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset. Where the Authorty is a
lessee in this type of arrangement, the related asset is recognised at the inception of the lease at
the falr value of the leased asset or, If lower, the prasent value of the lease payments plus
incidental payments, If any. A corresponding amount is recognised as a finance lease liability.

Sae note 1.3 for the depreciation methods and useful lives for assets held under flnance lease. The
corresponding finance lease liability is reduced by lease payments net of finance charges. The
interest element of lease payments represents a censtant proportion of the ouistanding capital
halance and ts charged o the income statements, within finance cost’ over the pericd of the leasa.

1.16 Operating leases

Leases of assets in which a significant portlon of the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Peayments made under operating leases
ara charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the petiod of the lease,

1.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs which are incurred for the purpese of acquiring or constructing qualifying property,
plant and equipment are capitalised as part of its cost. Borrowing costs are capltalised while
acquisition or construction Is actively underway, during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its Infended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased
once the asset is substantially complete and Is suspended if the development of the asset is
suspended, All other borrowlng costs are expensed. Borrowing costs are recognised for all
interest-bearing instrumeants on an accrual basls using the effective interest method. [nterest costs
includs the effect of amortising any difference between Initlal net proceeds and redemption value in
respect of interest-bearing borrowings.

16



MALTA RESOURCES AUTHORITY
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 Decamber 2018

Financial risk management
2.1 Financial risk factors

The Auitherity's activities potentially expose it to a variety of financial risks namely markeat risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Authority’s risk management is coordinated by the board mernbers and
focuses on actively securing the Authority's short to medium term cash flows by minimising the
axpesuirs to financial markets.

The Authority does not actively engage In trading of financlal assets for speculative purposes nor
does it write options. The most significant financial risks that the Authority Is exposed to are
described below,

(a) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Autherity has no significant interest-bearing assets and iiabllities, and Its income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. Notwithstanding this,
the Authority has short-term bank deposits with an average maturity date of three months from the
end of the reporting period (Note 8).

(b} Credit risk
The Authority's exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amcunt of financlal assets

recognised af the reporting date, as summarised below. The Authority's exposures to credit risk as
at the end of the reporting periods are analysed as follows:

2016 2015

€ , £

Trade and other receivables (Note 5) - 52,428
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) 92,244 896
92,244 53,324

The Authority monitors the performance of its recelvables on a regular basis to ldentify incurred
collection losses, which are inherent in the Authority's receivables, taking into account historical
expetience.

The Autherity's receivables, which are not impaired financial assets, are principally in respect of
transactions with operators for whom there is no recent history of default. Managemant does not
expect any iosses from non-performance by these customers. None of the Authority's financial
assets is secured by callateral,

As at 31 December 2016, no trade receivables were Impaired (2015: €Nil), and the amount of the
provisions in this respect are equivalent to these amounts. Reversal of provisions for impairment
arises in those situations where customers recover from unfavourable clrcumstances and
accordingly start meeting repayment obligations. The Authority does not hold any collateral as
security in respect of the impaired assets.

The cradit risk for cash and cash equivalents Is considared nagligible, since the counterparties are
reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.
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MALTA RESOURCES AUTHORITY
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2016

Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
{c) Liqulidity risk

The Authority iz exposed to liquidity risk in ralation to meeting future obligations associated with its
financtal liabilittes, which comprise trade and other payables (Note 9). Prudent liquidity risk
management includes maintalning sufficlent cash reserves to ensure the avallabllity of an adetuate
amount of funding fc meet the Authority's obligations.

The Authority monitors lquidity risk by reviewing expected cash flows, and ensures that no
additional financing facilittes are expected to be required over the coming year. The Authority's
liquidity risk s not deemed material in view of the matching of cash inflows and outflows arising
from expscted maturities of financlal Instruments and commitments.

2.2 Capital risk management

The Authority's equity, which constitutes its capital base, as disclosed In the statement of financial
position. The Authority's objectives when managing capital ars to sateguard the respective entity’s
ahility to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal capital structure o reduce the cost of capital.

In view of the fact that the Authority's net assets as at 31 July 2015 were transferred to the newly
formaited Regulator, by virtug of Act Na. XXV of 201§, the equity of the Authotity as at 31
December 2016 resulted in & negative net llabilty position. This shortfall will be financed in future
periods by the Regulator for Energy and Water Services.

Furthermore, in accordance with section 14(38) of the provisions of the Malta Resources Authority
Act, the Authority shall be paid by the Government of Malta out of the Consolidated Fund such
sums as Parliament may from time to time authorise to be appropriated io meet any of its
expenditure that cannot be met out of its revenue and the cosis of speciiied works to be continued
or otherwlise carried out by the Autherity, belng works of infrastructure or a similar capital nature.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical experfence and other
factors including expectations of future events that are befieved to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

In the opinion of the board members, the accounting estimates and judgements made in the course
of prepating these financial statements are not difficult, subjactive or complex to a degree which
would warrant thelr description as critical in terms of the requirements of IAS 1.
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Property, plant and equipment

Fumiture,
fixtures and Assets
Leaseholds Motor other  held under
Improvements  vehicles  equipment finance lease Total
€ € £ £ £
At 1 January 2015
Cost or valuation 18,981 81,185 371,738 287,608 789,413
Accumulated depreciation (18,981}  (67,521) (308,450)  (287,508) (682,460)
Net book amount - 13,664 63,289 - 76,953
Year ended 31 December
2015
Opening net bock amount - 13,664 63,288 76,853
Additions - - 8,023 . 8,023
Net asssts transferred
upon formation of
Regulator for Ensrgy and
Water Services (Note 10) - {11,671) {46,534) - (38.205)
Depreciation charge - {1,993) (22,027) - (24,020)
Closing net book amount - - 2,751 - 2,751
At 31 December 2015
Cost or valuation - - 3,769 - 3,769
Accumulated depreciation - - (1,018) {1,018)
Net book amount - - 2,751 - 2,751
Year ended 31 December
2016
Opening nat book amount - - 2,751 - 2,751
Additions - - 17,872 - 17,872
Depreciation charge - - (6,375) - {6,375)
Closing net book amount - “ 14,248 - 14,248
At 31 December 2016
Cost or valuation - - 21,641 - 21,841
Accumulated depreciation - - (7,393} - {7,393)
Net book amount - - 14,248 - 14,248
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Trade and other receivables

2018 2015
€ €

Current
Prepayments and acerued incoms 4,490 .
Amounts owed by related party “ 52,428
4,490 52,428

Cash and ¢ash equivalents

For the purposes of the statament of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comptise the following:

2016 2015

£ €

Cash and cash equivalents 92,244 896
Accumulated surplus/loss

2016 2015

€ €

Balance as at 1 January {272,420) 1,358,509

Surplus for the year 52,681 310,977

(219,739) 1,665,486
Distribution of reserves upon enactment of new regulator and

transfer of related activities (Note 9) = (1,941,908)
Adjustment to distribution of reserves upon enactment of new

regulator and transfer of related activities (Note 9) 248,804 -
As at 31 December 29,065 (272,420)

On 1 August 2015, by virtue of Act No. XXV of 2015, Article 42, all assets and liabilities of the
Authority as at 31 July 2015 were transferred to the Regulator for Energy and Water Services
(REWS). No contribution was paid to the authorlty for such a transfer, and so the Board deems this
transfer as a distribution of net assets amounting to €1,941,906 to the newly formed Regulater for
Energy and Water Services. Shartfalls will be financed by the Regulator for Energy and Water
Services.
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Trad.e and other payables

2016 2015
€ g

Current
Trade and other payables 6,550 21,198
Amounts owed to relatad party 88,166 238,502
Acoruals and deferrad incoma 83,190 34,677

157,906 294,467

Transfer of net assets to the Regulator for Energy and Water Services

On 1 August 2015, by virtue of Act No. XXV of 2015, Aicle 42, all assets and liabilities of the
Authority as at 31 July 2015 were transferred to the Regulator for Energy and Water Services,
referred in these financial statements as the new Regulator. No contribution was paid to the
authority for these net assels and hence the Board has treated this transfer as a distribution of the
Authority's reserves upon the enactment and commencement of activities of the new Regulator.

Net assets transferred by the Authority to the new Regulator amounted to €1,941.906 and
comprise:

€
Property, plant and eguipment 58,206
Trade and othar receivables
Recelvebles on llcences and contributions 403,610
Prepayments and accrued income 147,435
Total trade and other receivables 551,045
Cash in hand and in bank 3,088,142
Total assets transferred 4,597,392
Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables 240,443
Other payables 1,092,043
Accruals and deferred Income 1,323,000
Total liabilities transferred (2,655,4886)
Net assets transferred to new regulator 1,941,908
Reprasented by
€
Distribution of Authorlty's reserves (Nota 8) 1,941,906
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10.

1.

12.

Transfer of net assets 1o the Regulator for Energy and Water Services - continued

During 2016, the net assets transferred to the new Regulaier have been adjusted by €248,804 In
respect of funds taken over and utilised for the sefflement of tax payable on past surpluses
accumuiated by the Malta Rescurces Authority.

Revenue
Income represents licenses and contributions charged to utility organisaticns and other operators.
Following the transfer of all activities to the new Regulator in 2015, ¢ther than regulated mineral

resources, the Authority receives a subvention amounting to €243,129 (2015: £181,000) by the
Regulator for Energy and Water Services to cover its operational costs.

Excess expenditure over funds received

2016 2015
€ €

Rebata schemes, EU prejects and other initiatives:
Funds allocated by the Government of Malta and EU - 909,804
Relatad refunds to eligible scheme applicants - {1,011,328)
- (11,431)

During the year under review, -thé Authority reimbursed excess funds amounting to €Nil
{2015: €1,500,000) to the Government of Malta with respect to funds originally allocated by the
Government of Malta and the Eurcpaan Union in relation to rebate schemes, EU projects and other
initiatives.

Expenses by nature

2016 2015

€ €

Excess expanditure over refunds received (Note 11) - 11,431
Direct expenditure 15,256 144,722
Employee benefit expense (Note 13) 390,178 864,205
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 4) 6,375 24,020
Rent payable 14,324 60,741
Travelling expenses 32,5638 35,622
Motor vehlele expenses : 4,864 18,605
Other expenses 28,948 102,988

Total excess expenditure, direct expanditure and

adminisirative expanses 492,481 1,262,334

Auditor’s feas

Fees charged by the auditor for the statutory audit amount to €2,500 (2015: €5,500).
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13.

14.

Employee benefit expense

2016 2015

€ £

Wages and salaries ‘ 373,028 1,054,464
Social security costs 17,149 60,320

380,178 1,114,784
Re-charged to new Regulator (Note 19) - {250,573)

390,178 864,205

Average number of parsons empioyed by the Authority during the year:

2016 2015

Board members 5 7
Board sacretary 1 1
Operations 9 38
15 46

Salary expenses relating to staff seconded from and with Government entities amaounting to
€33,041 (2015! €31,731) are included above. Salaries In relation to the administration of EU
projects and rebate schemes amounting to €Nl (2015: €9,562) ara excluded from the above noted
amounts and included within excess expenditure over funds received (Note 11). Salary expenses
related tc seconded employees of the Authority amounting to €Nl (2015: €24,682) have bsen
refunded by other Government entifies during the year.

Board remuneration

2016 2015

€ €

Board members’ honoraria 28,000 34,423
Board sacretary’s honoraria 3,000 1,096
31,000 35,519

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, employee benefit expensas include an amount of
€Nil (2015: €52,240) related to salaries recelved by the deputy chalrman in his capacity as
consulfant with the Authority.
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16. Finance income

2016 2018
€ €
Intarast income from demand deposits - 4,784
16. Tax (credit)/expense
2016 2015
€ £
Current iax (409) 138,861

The tax on the Authority’s surplus before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

using the basic tax rate as follows:

2016 2015
€ €
Surplus for the year before iax 52,272 449,838
Tax on surplus at 35% 18,295 157,443
Tax effect of:
fncome taxed at reduced rates - (830)
Expenses not allowead for tax purposes - 218
Movement in unrecognised deferred tax assets 338 (17,968)
Prior year adjusiment (19,042) .
Tax (credit)/expense (409) 138,861

The authority also had net deductible temporary ditferences on provisions and property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2016 amounting to £1,040 (2015; €76). Ths resuiting deferred tax
asset of €364 (2015: €27) has not been recognised in these financial statements due io the

uncertainty of the realisation of these tax benefits.
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17.

18.

18.

Cash generated from operations

Recenclliation of operating surplus generated from oparations:

2016 2015
€ €
Operating surplus 52,272 445,054
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 4) 6,375 24,020
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other recsivablas 47,938 {261,019)
Trade and cther payables : 2,635 728,272
Cash generated from operations 109,220 936,327

Contingencies

Due to the nature of its functions, the Authority is currently a co-defendant vis-a-vis several cases.
The Board notes that the attribution of responsibility, if any, in these court cases is stil
undetarmined. Thus, quantification of any potential liability Is premature and hence no provision has
been recognised in these financial statements. Furthermore, in accordance with Act No. XXV of
2015, Article 42, potential liabilittes related to the activities taken over by the Regulator for Energy
and Water Services are now under the respansibility of the new Regulator.

Related party transactions

The Malta Resources Authority is an autonomous public institution and reparts to Parliament on an
annual basis, The Board members of the Authority are appointed by the Government of Malta,

During the period under review, the Authority entered into fransactions with a number of
Government-refated entitios.

Unless otherwise stated, none of the transactions incorporate spacial tarms and conditions and no
guarantee was givern or received. Transactions with related parties are unsscured and interest free.
Qutstanding balances are usuaily settled in cash.
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19,

Related party transactions - continued

Income recognised for the year under review relating to licenses and contributions from utility
organisations and refunds on previous year's expenditure on other studies (if any), are disclosed in

Notes 11 and 12,

On 1 August 2015, by virtue of Act No. XXV of 20156, Article 42, all assets and [iabilities of the
Authority as at 31 July 2015 amounting to €1,941,906 were transferred to the Regulator for Energy
and Water Services {(REWS), which is considered o be a related party, The following transactions

were carried out by the Authority with the new Regulator for the period till year end:

2016

£

Subvention (Note 9) 243,129
Recharged employee benefit expanses {(Note 13) -
Tax settlement (Note 8) 358,412

2015
€

181,000
250,579
238,592

As at 31 December 2018, the Authorlty had an outstanding receivable balance owead by the new
Regulator amounting to €Nil (Note 5) (2015: €52,428) and an outstanding payable balance owed o

the Regulator amounting to €68,166 (Note 8) (2015: £€238,592).

Kay management personnal compensation, consisting of board members' remuneration, has been

disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements.
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Authority board report

The members of the Authority board present their report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Principal activities

The Malta Resources Authority (MRA) is a public corporate body with regulatory responsibilities relating to
water, energy and mineral resources in the Maltese Islands. It was set up by the Maltess Parliament
through the Malta Resources Authority Act, Chapter 423, The MRA has a wide range of responsibilities
essentially involving regulation of water and energy utilities, quarry operations, the protection of
groundwater, the regulation of retallers, operations and tradesmen in the ragulated sectors.

As from 1 August 2015, all activities, other than regulated mingral resources, ware taken over by the
“newly formed Regulator for Energy and Water Services (REWS]) by virlue of Act No. XXV of 2015,

Review of the operations

Curing the year under review the Authority received revenues from licenses and contributions of €301,624
(2015: €1,528,388) and €243,129 (2015: €181,000) as a subvention from the Regulator for Energy and
Water Services to cover Its operational costs. These revenues are generated in support of the Authority's
regulatory responsibilities. The Authority registered a surplus for the year of €52,681 (2015: €310,977)
after a tax credit of €409 (2015: expense of €138,861) and adminisirative costs of €477,225
(2015: €1,108,181). ‘

On 1 August 2018, by virue of Act No. XXV of 2015, Article 42, all assets and fiabilities of the Authority as
at 31 July 2015 were transferred to the Regulator for Energy and Water Services (REWS). No contribution
was paid o the authority for such a transfer, and so the Board deems this iransfer as a distribution of nst
assets ameunting to €1,941,908 to the newly formed Regulator.

Results and surplus funds

The statement of comprehensive income is set out on page 8. The surplus for the year amounted to
€52,681 (2015: €310,977). During 2015, by virtue of Act No. XXV of 2015, Article 42, the Authority's net
gesets as at 31 July 2015, amounting to €1,941,9086, were distributed to the newly formed Regulator for
Energy and Water Services. Shortfalls will be financed in future periods by the new Regulator.
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Authority board report - continued
Board members
The board members of the Authority who held office during the year were:

Mr. Mario J. Azzopardi {Chairman}
Professor Manfred Waissenhacher
Dr. Slmoh Schambti

Ing. Paul Fenech

Mr. Frederick Cutajar

Statement of board members’ responsibllities
In preparing the financial staternents the board mempers are respensible for,

° ensuring that the financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU and the Malta Resources Authority Act;

» selecting and applying appropriate accounting policias;
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circlimstances;

. enguring that the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis unless It is
inappropriate to presume that the Authority will continue in operation as a going concern.

The board rmembers are also responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internai conirol as
the board members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatemant, whether due to fraud or error, and that comply with the Malta Resources
Authority Act. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Authority and hence for taking
reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities, .
The financial statements of the Autherity for the year ended 31 Decamber 2016 are included In the Annual
Repott 2016, which is pubiished in hard-copy printed form and may be made available on the Authority’s
website, The board members are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Annual Report on
the website in view of their responsibility for the centrols over, and the security of, the website. Access to
information published on the Authority's website Is avallable In other countries and jurisdictions, where
legislation goveming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
requirements or practice in Malta,
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Authority board report - continued

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution for their re-
appointment will be proposed.

On behalf of the board

e,

Mario J. Azzopardi lng:W

Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Registered office

Malta Resources Authority
Millennia, 2nd Floor

Aldo Moro Road

Marsa MRS 2085

Malta

21 February 2017






Independent auditor’s report
To the Stakeholders of the Malta Resources Authority

Report on the audzr ()f the finaneial smtemeni's

Our e}ﬁzmmz
In ouropiniom

»  The Malta Resources Authority’s finaneial statements give o true and faivview of the authority’s
financial position as at 31 Decomber 2016, and of the authority’s financial periormame and cash
flaws for the year then ended i avcordance with Tntemationsl Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs") ag adopred by the EU; and

& The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the Malta
Resources-Authority Act:

What we have gudited

The Malta Resoutces Authority’s inanclal statements, set out on pages 710:26, comprise:
e the statement of financial position as at 33 December 2018;

» the statement of comprehensive income for the year-then snded;

o  the statement of changes in equity for the year thepenided;

@ the statement of cash flows for-the year then ended; and
# the notes to the financial statements, which inciude & summary of significant accounting policies.

Basts for opinion

We conducted our audit in acéordance with Internationdl Standards on Audifing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further desaribed in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Staterments section of our report.

We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide o basis
for.our opiniof.

Independense

We ate independent of the authority fn accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ ‘Code of Bthics for Professional Aceornitants (IESBA Code) together with the sthical
requirements of the Adctuntancy Profession (Code of Ethics for Warsant Holders) Divactive issued in
terms of the Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281) that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statemeiits in Malta. We have fulfilled enr other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the TESBA
Code,





Other informuoiion

The board members are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
annual report and board's report, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial staterients does not cover the other information, inchyding the anriual
repoit and board’s report.

In eonnection with our audit of the finaneial statements, our responsibility i to tead the other
information identified above and; in doing so, consider whethet the otker information is materially
ineomsistent with the: finanelal stateinents ot gut knowledgé obtatned in the andit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

With. reapect te the annual report and board’s report, we algo considered whether the annual Teport
and board’s reportinclude the disclosures raquired by the Malta Resonress Authority At

Based ot the work we bave performed, in our opinions

s Theinformation given in the anmual report and board’s reportforthe finaneial year for whick the
financial statements are prepared are consistent with the financial statements; and

¢ the annual report and board’s report have been prepared in accordance with the Mala Resources
HAuthotity Act,

In addition, I light of the knowledgs and. understanding of the authority and fis environient
ébtained in the course of the audit, we are requived to report if we have identified material
misstatements in the annual report and baaed’s report and sther information that we obtained prior
to the date of this anditor’s report, We have nothing to report in this regasd,

Respousibifities of the board members for the finarcial statenients

The board merobers are responsible for the preparation of financial statemenits that give a trie aud
fair view in aceordance with TFRSs as adopted by the EU and the requivermerits of the Malta Resources
Authotity Act, and:for such internal control as the bvard mesibers deteririine 18 ndcessary to enable
the preparation of financidl statements that ave free from material misstatement, whether due to
fratd or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the board members are respansible for assessing the authority's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, #s applicable, matters rélated o going coneern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the hoatrd members ithér intend to liquidate the
authority or fo cease operationis, v has no'realistic alternative but.to do so.





Auditor’s responsibilities for the qudit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assuiance about whether-the finaneial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement; whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasondble assurance is a high level of assurance, but s not a guarantee
that an dudit conducted in accordance with I8As will ulways deteet a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstaterments can dride from frand or efror and are eorsidered material I, fudividually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably bé expected to influeide the ecodomie decisions of users faken
on the hasis of these financial statements.

&s part of an audit in accordance with. I9As, we exereise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticisin throughout the audit; We also;

o Tdentify and assess the risks of material inisstatement of the finaneial statements, whther dueto
fraud.or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those rxs}ts and -obtain audit
evidenioe that s sufficlent and appropriate to- ;;zmvuie a basis for our opinfon. The risk of not
detectmg a material misstatoment resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as frand may involve collusion; forgery, inténtional omissions; wisrepresentations; or the overvide
ofinterndl control,

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the dndit fn order to design audit
proca&ures that are appropriate o the circumstances, but not for: the purpose of expresaing an
opinion on the sffectiveness of the authority’s internal eontral.

o Byaliate the Appropriateness of qecounting policies used and the feasonableness of ackountitig
pstimates and related disclosires made ‘by‘the'bcard fremnliets,

¢ Coucinde on the appropriatensss of the board members’ use of the golng concern bagis of

gieounting ‘and, bagsd on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material wncertainty: exists

relited to eventy or conditions that may cast signiffcant doubt on the autherity’s ability to

econtihie 85 4 golng tonceriy, T we conelude that a materinl uncertmnty extets, we are required to

deaw aftetfion ih ous anditor's report 1o the relat;ed d’}sciasufes i the ﬁnﬁnudl statements or, if

such disclosures ave inadequate, to modify ol opinion. Cur condlusions urg based o thie.andit

evidence ohtatned up to the date of our atiditor’s report. However, fiitire eveénty or conditions
meay cause the authority to epase to continue as a going eoncern.

@ Evalﬁate fhe overa’i‘l pmsenta’cmn, stmcmrei and ccmtent o’f ‘t‘ﬂe ﬁncmmai statmnmt&} mciud:mg ?;11@

avents in a anner that achm’yes Fair prasenmtion

We ¢ommumnicate with those charged with governanee regarding, among other matters, the plann'efi
seope and timing of the andit and significant audlt findings, inclnding any significant Geficiencies In
interial coriteol that we identify during our audit.

Pm@ewaterhﬁusaﬁmpers
t Mlli Street

* 21 'Febl- AUV 2017
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Statement of financial position

Ag a3t December

2018 2615
_ Motes £ £
ASSETS
Non-surrent assets
Property, plant and-equipment 4 14,248 2751

Total non-current aesefs 14,248 2,781

Current hesols

Trade end other receivables 5 4,480 52 ARE
Gurrent tax asset 99,285 “
Gashand cash squivalons [3 82,244 896

Total current assets 196,130 53,204

Total asesis 210,878 58,075

BQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Ceopttal and reservas N

Total equity 29,085  (272.420)

Gurrent liabilities ) _
Tratle and other payables 8 157,006 204,487
Current tax llabiifies 28,407 34 Gagy

Tetal liabifties 181313 3endos

Total pguity and Habliltles 210,378 56,075

The notes on pages 11 to 26.are an integral patt of these financial siatements.

The ‘financial statements on pages 7 to 26 were ‘authorised for issua by Ihe board rmembers on.
21 February 2017 and wefe signed.on its behalf by

Mrj’o J. Azzopardi ing. Anath
Chairman Chief &
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Statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015

Notes € €

Revenue 10 301,624 1,526,388
Subvention from new Regulator 10 243,129 181,000
Excess expenditure over funds received 11 - (11,431)
Direct expenditure 12 (15,256) (144,722)
Administrative expenses i2 (477,225) (1,1086,181)
Operating surplus 52,272 445,054
Finance income 15 - 4,784
Surplus before tax 52,272 449,838
Tax cradit/(expense) 18 409 (138,861)
Surplus for the year - total comprehensive income 52,681 310,977

The notes on pages 11 to 26 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of changes in equity

Accumulated
surplusfloss
Note €
Balance at 1 January 2015 1,358,509
Comprehensive income
Surplus for the year , 310,977
Distribution of reserves upon enactment of new regulator
and transfer of related activities 7 (1,941,906)
Balance at 31 December 2015 (272,420)
Comprehensive income
Surplus for the year 52,681
Adjustment 1o the distribution of resetves upon
enactment of new regulator and transfer of related
activities 7 248,804
Balance at 31 DRecember 2016 29,065

The notes on pages 11 to 26 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows

Notes

Cash flows generated from operating activitles

Cash generated from.opsrations 17
Interest raceived

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows used in investing activitles
Purchase of property, plant and equipment A

Net cash used in Investing activities

Met movement in cash and cash equivalents

Cash transfer to Regulater for Energy and Water Services
Excess funds reimbursed back to Gavernment of Malta 11

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalenis at end of year 8

The notes on pages 11 to 26 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
€ ¢
109,220 936,327
- 4,784

- (348,199)
109,220 592,912
(17,872) (8,023)
(17,872) (8,023)
91,348 584,889
- (3,988,142)

- (1,500,000

896 4,904,149
92,244 896

10
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Notes to the financial statements

1.

Act. They have been prepared under the historical cost.

Summary of slgnificant accounting policies

The principal accounting policles applied In the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been censistantly applied to all the ysars presented, unless otherwise
stated.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFR8s) as adopted by the EU and the requirements of the Maita Resources Authority

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs as adopted by the EU requires the
use of certain accounting estimates. It also requires the board members to exercise judgement in
the process of applying the Autharity's accounting policles (see Note 8 - Critical accounting
estimates and judgements).

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2018

In 2016, the Authority adopted new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are mandatory for the Authority's acceunting periad béginning on 1 January 2016.
The adoption of these revisions to the requirements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU did not result in
substantial changes to the Authority’s accounting policies.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effsctive in 2016

Certain new standards, amendments and interpratations to existing standards have been published
by the cate of authorisation for issue of these financial statements but are mandatory for the
authority's accounting perlods beginning after 1 January 2016. The authority has not early adopted
these revisions to the requirements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the Board Is of the cpihion
that, with the exception of IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, there are no requirements that will have
a possible significant impact on the authority’s financial statements in the period of inltial
application.

1.2 Fareign currency transiatlon
{a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial staterments are measured using the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the eniity operates (‘the functional currency’}, The financial
statements are presented in euro, which is the Authority’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and bajances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currengy using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlament of such transactionis and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabillties denominated in foreign currencies are recognised In profit or loss.

All forelgn exchange gains or losses are presanted in the income statement.
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Summary of slgnificant accounting policies - continued
1.3 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipmant is Initially recorded at historical cost, Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributabls to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recegnised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying armount of the
replaced part s derscognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurrad.

lems of property plant and equipment comprise leasehold improvements, computsr equipment,
computer software, motor vehicles, and furniture, fixtures and other equipment and are initially
recognised at acquisition cost. Subsequently they are carried at acquisition cost less subsequent
depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allccate their coat or ravalued amount to
thair residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

%
Leasenold improvements 10
Computer equipment a0
Computer software 30
Motor vehicles 20
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 10 - 80
Assets held under finance lease over the term of the lease

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriats, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount If the asset's carrying amount Is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in profit or loss.

1.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances Indicate that the carrying ameunt may not be recoverable. An impalrmant loss Is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amolint exceeds its recoverable amount,
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs ta sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levals for which there
are separately Identiflable cash flows (cash-generating units),
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Summary of signlficant accounting policies - contirued
1.5 FInanclal assets
1.5.1 Clagsification

The Authority classifies its financial assets into loans and receivables, The classification depends
on the purpese for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financlal assets at inltial recognition.

lLoans and receivables are non-derivative financial assats with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Authority provides money, goods or
services directly to a debtor with no intenfion of trading the asset. They are inciuded in current
assels, except for maturities greater than twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
These are classified as non-current assets. The Authority’s loans and recelvables comprise trade
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position (Note
1.6 and 1.7).

1.5.2 Recognition and measurement

The Authority recognises a financlal asset in its staterment of financial position when it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on ssttlement dats, which is the date on which an asset is dalivered to or by
the Authority. Any change in fair value for the asset to be received is racognised between the trade
date and settlement date in respact of assets which are carried at fair value in accordance with the
measursement rules applicable to the respectiva financial assets.

Financial assets are initially recognisad at fair value plus transaction costs. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Amortised cost fs
the initial measurement amount adjusted for the amottisation of any difference between the initial
and maturity amounts using the effective Interest method.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Authority has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership or has not retained control of the asset.

1.5.3 Impairment

The Authority assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is cbjective evidencs that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is Impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impahment losses are incurred only if there is oblectiva evidence of
impairment as a resuit of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a ‘loss event)) and that loss avent (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be rellably estimated. The Authority first
assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists. The criterla that the Authority uses to
determine that there is obJective evidence of an impairment loss includs:

. slghificant financial clifficulty of the issuer or obligor;
» abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency it interest or principal payments;
» it becomes probahle that the borrowsr wil enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation,
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Summary of significant accounting policies - confinuad
1.5 Financial assets - continued
1.5.3 Impairment - continued

For financlal assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the flnancial asset's
original effectlve interest rate, The asset's carrying amount is reduced and the amount of the loss
is recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subseguent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can ba related objectively to an event occurring after the Impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impalrment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

1.6 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables generally comprise amounts due from utllity organisations and other operators,
If collection Is expected in one year or less (or in the normal cperating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. [f not, they are presentad as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initiaily at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provigion for impairment. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss Is recognised in the income statement. When a tecelvable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for trade and other receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amcunts
previously written off are credited against profit or loss.

1.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at face value, 1n the
statement of cash fiows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits hald at call
together with short-tarm, highly lieuid investments that are readily convertible into known armounts
of cash, and which are subject to an ingignificant risk of changes in value.

1.8 Reserves
The reserve fund includes all current and prior period retained surpluses and deficits,
1.9 Financial liabilities

The authorlty recognises a financial liability In its staiement of financial position when it bacomes a
party to the contractual provisions of tha instrument. The authority's financial Habllities are
classified as financial iabilities which are not. at fair value through profit or l0ss (classified as 'Cther
liabilities”) under IAS 38, Financial liabilities not at falr value through profit or less are recognised
Initially at fair value, being the fair value of consideration received, net of transaction costs that are
directly atiributable to the acquisifion or the issue of the financial liability. These liabiliies are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. The authority derecognises a financial liability from its
staterment of financial position when the obligation specified in the contract or arrangement is
discharged, s canceiled or expires,
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Summeary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.10 Trade and other payables

Trade payables cemprise obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of aperations from suppliers and service providers. Accounts payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or In the normai operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Other payables include amounts related to committed and approved grants allocated to the
Authority by the EU and the Government of Malta with respect to the renewabls ehergy rebate
schemes administrated by the Authority.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

1.711 Current and deferred tax

The tax expensse for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehansive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprahensive incoms ot directly
in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liabllity method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabllities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred
tax fs determined using tax rates (and laws} that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expecied to apply when the related defetred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liabilty is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised anly to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offzat
curtent tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred iax assets and Habilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

1.12 Provisions

Provisions for lega! claims are recognised when the Authority has a present legal or constructlve
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outfiow of rasources will e required to
settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions ars not recognhised for
future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures axpected to be required o settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current markst assessments of the time value of
maoney and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recagnised as interest expense.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.13 Revenue recognition

Revenue Is racognised when the amount of revenua can be measured reliably, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, the costs incurred or to
be incurred can be measured reliably, and when the criteria for the Authority's activities has been
met.

(Y lncome from licences and contributions from utility organisations is recognised on an
accrual basls,

(1 Interest incorne from investments Is reported in an accrual basls using the effective interest
method.

income derlved from grants allocated to the Authority by the EU and the Government of Malta with
respect to the renewsble energy rebate schemes is recoghised over the periods necessary to
match with related refunds paid to eligible scheme applicants.

1.14 Operating expenses

Operating expenses are recoghised in the income statement upen utllisatlon of the service
renderad.

1.15 Finance leases

The economic ownership of a leased assst Is transferred to the lessee if the lessse bears
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset. Where the Authorty is a
lessee in this type of arrangement, the related asset is recognised at the inception of the lease at
the falr value of the leased asset or, If lower, the prasent value of the lease payments plus
incidental payments, If any. A corresponding amount is recognised as a finance lease liability.

Sae note 1.3 for the depreciation methods and useful lives for assets held under flnance lease. The
corresponding finance lease liability is reduced by lease payments net of finance charges. The
interest element of lease payments represents a censtant proportion of the ouistanding capital
halance and ts charged o the income statements, within finance cost’ over the pericd of the leasa.

1.16 Operating leases

Leases of assets in which a significant portlon of the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Peayments made under operating leases
ara charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the petiod of the lease,

1.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs which are incurred for the purpese of acquiring or constructing qualifying property,
plant and equipment are capitalised as part of its cost. Borrowing costs are capltalised while
acquisition or construction Is actively underway, during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its Infended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased
once the asset is substantially complete and Is suspended if the development of the asset is
suspended, All other borrowlng costs are expensed. Borrowing costs are recognised for all
interest-bearing instrumeants on an accrual basls using the effective interest method. [nterest costs
includs the effect of amortising any difference between Initlal net proceeds and redemption value in
respect of interest-bearing borrowings.
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Financial risk management
2.1 Financial risk factors

The Auitherity's activities potentially expose it to a variety of financial risks namely markeat risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Authority’s risk management is coordinated by the board mernbers and
focuses on actively securing the Authority's short to medium term cash flows by minimising the
axpesuirs to financial markets.

The Authority does not actively engage In trading of financlal assets for speculative purposes nor
does it write options. The most significant financial risks that the Authority Is exposed to are
described below,

(a) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Autherity has no significant interest-bearing assets and iiabllities, and Its income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. Notwithstanding this,
the Authority has short-term bank deposits with an average maturity date of three months from the
end of the reporting period (Note 8).

(b} Credit risk
The Authority's exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amcunt of financlal assets

recognised af the reporting date, as summarised below. The Authority's exposures to credit risk as
at the end of the reporting periods are analysed as follows:

2016 2015

€ , £

Trade and other receivables (Note 5) - 52,428
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) 92,244 896
92,244 53,324

The Authority monitors the performance of its recelvables on a regular basis to ldentify incurred
collection losses, which are inherent in the Authority's receivables, taking into account historical
expetience.

The Autherity's receivables, which are not impaired financial assets, are principally in respect of
transactions with operators for whom there is no recent history of default. Managemant does not
expect any iosses from non-performance by these customers. None of the Authority's financial
assets is secured by callateral,

As at 31 December 2016, no trade receivables were Impaired (2015: €Nil), and the amount of the
provisions in this respect are equivalent to these amounts. Reversal of provisions for impairment
arises in those situations where customers recover from unfavourable clrcumstances and
accordingly start meeting repayment obligations. The Authority does not hold any collateral as
security in respect of the impaired assets.

The cradit risk for cash and cash equivalents Is considared nagligible, since the counterparties are
reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
{c) Liqulidity risk

The Authority iz exposed to liquidity risk in ralation to meeting future obligations associated with its
financtal liabilittes, which comprise trade and other payables (Note 9). Prudent liquidity risk
management includes maintalning sufficlent cash reserves to ensure the avallabllity of an adetuate
amount of funding fc meet the Authority's obligations.

The Authority monitors lquidity risk by reviewing expected cash flows, and ensures that no
additional financing facilittes are expected to be required over the coming year. The Authority's
liquidity risk s not deemed material in view of the matching of cash inflows and outflows arising
from expscted maturities of financlal Instruments and commitments.

2.2 Capital risk management

The Authority's equity, which constitutes its capital base, as disclosed In the statement of financial
position. The Authority's objectives when managing capital ars to sateguard the respective entity’s
ahility to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal capital structure o reduce the cost of capital.

In view of the fact that the Authority's net assets as at 31 July 2015 were transferred to the newly
formaited Regulator, by virtug of Act Na. XXV of 201§, the equity of the Authotity as at 31
December 2016 resulted in & negative net llabilty position. This shortfall will be financed in future
periods by the Regulator for Energy and Water Services.

Furthermore, in accordance with section 14(38) of the provisions of the Malta Resources Authority
Act, the Authority shall be paid by the Government of Malta out of the Consolidated Fund such
sums as Parliament may from time to time authorise to be appropriated io meet any of its
expenditure that cannot be met out of its revenue and the cosis of speciiied works to be continued
or otherwlise carried out by the Autherity, belng works of infrastructure or a similar capital nature.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical experfence and other
factors including expectations of future events that are befieved to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

In the opinion of the board members, the accounting estimates and judgements made in the course
of prepating these financial statements are not difficult, subjactive or complex to a degree which
would warrant thelr description as critical in terms of the requirements of IAS 1.
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Property, plant and equipment

Fumiture,
fixtures and Assets
Leaseholds Motor other  held under
Improvements  vehicles  equipment finance lease Total
€ € £ £ £
At 1 January 2015
Cost or valuation 18,981 81,185 371,738 287,608 789,413
Accumulated depreciation (18,981}  (67,521) (308,450)  (287,508) (682,460)
Net book amount - 13,664 63,289 - 76,953
Year ended 31 December
2015
Opening net bock amount - 13,664 63,288 76,853
Additions - - 8,023 . 8,023
Net asssts transferred
upon formation of
Regulator for Ensrgy and
Water Services (Note 10) - {11,671) {46,534) - (38.205)
Depreciation charge - {1,993) (22,027) - (24,020)
Closing net book amount - - 2,751 - 2,751
At 31 December 2015
Cost or valuation - - 3,769 - 3,769
Accumulated depreciation - - (1,018) {1,018)
Net book amount - - 2,751 - 2,751
Year ended 31 December
2016
Opening nat book amount - - 2,751 - 2,751
Additions - - 17,872 - 17,872
Depreciation charge - - (6,375) - {6,375)
Closing net book amount - “ 14,248 - 14,248
At 31 December 2016
Cost or valuation - - 21,641 - 21,841
Accumulated depreciation - - (7,393} - {7,393)
Net book amount - - 14,248 - 14,248
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Trade and other receivables

2018 2015
€ €

Current
Prepayments and acerued incoms 4,490 .
Amounts owed by related party “ 52,428
4,490 52,428

Cash and ¢ash equivalents

For the purposes of the statament of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comptise the following:

2016 2015

£ €

Cash and cash equivalents 92,244 896
Accumulated surplus/loss

2016 2015

€ €

Balance as at 1 January {272,420) 1,358,509

Surplus for the year 52,681 310,977

(219,739) 1,665,486
Distribution of reserves upon enactment of new regulator and

transfer of related activities (Note 9) = (1,941,908)
Adjustment to distribution of reserves upon enactment of new

regulator and transfer of related activities (Note 9) 248,804 -
As at 31 December 29,065 (272,420)

On 1 August 2015, by virtue of Act No. XXV of 2015, Article 42, all assets and liabilities of the
Authority as at 31 July 2015 were transferred to the Regulator for Energy and Water Services
(REWS). No contribution was paid to the authorlty for such a transfer, and so the Board deems this
transfer as a distribution of net assets amounting to €1,941,906 to the newly formed Regulater for
Energy and Water Services. Shartfalls will be financed by the Regulator for Energy and Water
Services.
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Trad.e and other payables

2016 2015
€ g

Current
Trade and other payables 6,550 21,198
Amounts owed to relatad party 88,166 238,502
Acoruals and deferrad incoma 83,190 34,677

157,906 294,467

Transfer of net assets to the Regulator for Energy and Water Services

On 1 August 2015, by virtue of Act No. XXV of 2015, Aicle 42, all assets and liabilities of the
Authority as at 31 July 2015 were transferred to the Regulator for Energy and Water Services,
referred in these financial statements as the new Regulator. No contribution was paid to the
authority for these net assels and hence the Board has treated this transfer as a distribution of the
Authority's reserves upon the enactment and commencement of activities of the new Regulator.

Net assets transferred by the Authority to the new Regulator amounted to €1,941.906 and
comprise:

€
Property, plant and eguipment 58,206
Trade and othar receivables
Recelvebles on llcences and contributions 403,610
Prepayments and accrued income 147,435
Total trade and other receivables 551,045
Cash in hand and in bank 3,088,142
Total assets transferred 4,597,392
Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables 240,443
Other payables 1,092,043
Accruals and deferred Income 1,323,000
Total liabilities transferred (2,655,4886)
Net assets transferred to new regulator 1,941,908
Reprasented by
€
Distribution of Authorlty's reserves (Nota 8) 1,941,906
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10.

1.

12.

Transfer of net assets 1o the Regulator for Energy and Water Services - continued

During 2016, the net assets transferred to the new Regulaier have been adjusted by €248,804 In
respect of funds taken over and utilised for the sefflement of tax payable on past surpluses
accumuiated by the Malta Rescurces Authority.

Revenue
Income represents licenses and contributions charged to utility organisaticns and other operators.
Following the transfer of all activities to the new Regulator in 2015, ¢ther than regulated mineral

resources, the Authority receives a subvention amounting to €243,129 (2015: £181,000) by the
Regulator for Energy and Water Services to cover its operational costs.

Excess expenditure over funds received

2016 2015
€ €

Rebata schemes, EU prejects and other initiatives:
Funds allocated by the Government of Malta and EU - 909,804
Relatad refunds to eligible scheme applicants - {1,011,328)
- (11,431)

During the year under review, -thé Authority reimbursed excess funds amounting to €Nil
{2015: €1,500,000) to the Government of Malta with respect to funds originally allocated by the
Government of Malta and the Eurcpaan Union in relation to rebate schemes, EU projects and other
initiatives.

Expenses by nature

2016 2015

€ €

Excess expanditure over refunds received (Note 11) - 11,431
Direct expenditure 15,256 144,722
Employee benefit expense (Note 13) 390,178 864,205
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 4) 6,375 24,020
Rent payable 14,324 60,741
Travelling expenses 32,5638 35,622
Motor vehlele expenses : 4,864 18,605
Other expenses 28,948 102,988

Total excess expenditure, direct expanditure and

adminisirative expanses 492,481 1,262,334

Auditor’s feas

Fees charged by the auditor for the statutory audit amount to €2,500 (2015: €5,500).
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13.

14.

Employee benefit expense

2016 2015

€ £

Wages and salaries ‘ 373,028 1,054,464
Social security costs 17,149 60,320

380,178 1,114,784
Re-charged to new Regulator (Note 19) - {250,573)

390,178 864,205

Average number of parsons empioyed by the Authority during the year:

2016 2015

Board members 5 7
Board sacretary 1 1
Operations 9 38
15 46

Salary expenses relating to staff seconded from and with Government entities amaounting to
€33,041 (2015! €31,731) are included above. Salaries In relation to the administration of EU
projects and rebate schemes amounting to €Nl (2015: €9,562) ara excluded from the above noted
amounts and included within excess expenditure over funds received (Note 11). Salary expenses
related tc seconded employees of the Authority amounting to €Nl (2015: €24,682) have bsen
refunded by other Government entifies during the year.

Board remuneration

2016 2015

€ €

Board members’ honoraria 28,000 34,423
Board sacretary’s honoraria 3,000 1,096
31,000 35,519

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, employee benefit expensas include an amount of
€Nil (2015: €52,240) related to salaries recelved by the deputy chalrman in his capacity as
consulfant with the Authority.
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16. Finance income

2016 2018
€ €
Intarast income from demand deposits - 4,784
16. Tax (credit)/expense
2016 2015
€ £
Current iax (409) 138,861

The tax on the Authority’s surplus before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

using the basic tax rate as follows:

2016 2015
€ €
Surplus for the year before iax 52,272 449,838
Tax on surplus at 35% 18,295 157,443
Tax effect of:
fncome taxed at reduced rates - (830)
Expenses not allowead for tax purposes - 218
Movement in unrecognised deferred tax assets 338 (17,968)
Prior year adjusiment (19,042) .
Tax (credit)/expense (409) 138,861

The authority also had net deductible temporary ditferences on provisions and property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2016 amounting to £1,040 (2015; €76). Ths resuiting deferred tax
asset of €364 (2015: €27) has not been recognised in these financial statements due io the

uncertainty of the realisation of these tax benefits.
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17.

18.

18.

Cash generated from operations

Recenclliation of operating surplus generated from oparations:

2016 2015
€ €
Operating surplus 52,272 445,054
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 4) 6,375 24,020
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other recsivablas 47,938 {261,019)
Trade and cther payables : 2,635 728,272
Cash generated from operations 109,220 936,327

Contingencies

Due to the nature of its functions, the Authority is currently a co-defendant vis-a-vis several cases.
The Board notes that the attribution of responsibility, if any, in these court cases is stil
undetarmined. Thus, quantification of any potential liability Is premature and hence no provision has
been recognised in these financial statements. Furthermore, in accordance with Act No. XXV of
2015, Article 42, potential liabilittes related to the activities taken over by the Regulator for Energy
and Water Services are now under the respansibility of the new Regulator.

Related party transactions

The Malta Resources Authority is an autonomous public institution and reparts to Parliament on an
annual basis, The Board members of the Authority are appointed by the Government of Malta,

During the period under review, the Authority entered into fransactions with a number of
Government-refated entitios.

Unless otherwise stated, none of the transactions incorporate spacial tarms and conditions and no
guarantee was givern or received. Transactions with related parties are unsscured and interest free.
Qutstanding balances are usuaily settled in cash.
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19,

Related party transactions - continued

Income recognised for the year under review relating to licenses and contributions from utility
organisations and refunds on previous year's expenditure on other studies (if any), are disclosed in

Notes 11 and 12,

On 1 August 2015, by virtue of Act No. XXV of 20156, Article 42, all assets and [iabilities of the
Authority as at 31 July 2015 amounting to €1,941,906 were transferred to the Regulator for Energy
and Water Services {(REWS), which is considered o be a related party, The following transactions

were carried out by the Authority with the new Regulator for the period till year end:

2016

£

Subvention (Note 9) 243,129
Recharged employee benefit expanses {(Note 13) -
Tax settlement (Note 8) 358,412

2015
€

181,000
250,579
238,592

As at 31 December 2018, the Authorlty had an outstanding receivable balance owead by the new
Regulator amounting to €Nil (Note 5) (2015: €52,428) and an outstanding payable balance owed o

the Regulator amounting to €68,166 (Note 8) (2015: £€238,592).

Kay management personnal compensation, consisting of board members' remuneration, has been

disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements.
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